
1 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 

6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING September 10, 2018 

1. ROLL CALL

2. INVOCATION – Captain Mark Larrick, The Salvation Army

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Regular Meeting of Council
held on August 27, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.

5. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Shade Tree Commission 

meeting held on June 26, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission

meeting held on August 1, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  
C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Civil Service

Commission meeting held on June 6, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed.  

D. Resolution No. 18-51, a resolution accepting the amounts and 
rates as determined by the Budget Commission and authorizing 
the necessary tax levies and certifying them to the County Auditor 
for Tax Year 2018/Budget Year 2019.   

E. Resolution No. 18-52, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a Cooperation Agreement with Delaware County for the 
installation of a traffic signal at the intersection of US 23 and 
Glenn Parkway-Peachblow Road.  



2 
 

F. Establish September 24, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for 
a public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 18-81, an 
ordinance amending Section 917.05 of the Delaware Codified 
Ordinances modifying industrial pre-treatment limits for silver and 
mercury.  

G. Establish September 24, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. as a date and time for 
a public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 18-84, an 
ordinance for Mystic Golf and Fames LLC for approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit request for Mystic Golf and Games at 1159 
Columbus Pike within the Delaware Square Shopping Center and 
zoned B-3 (Community Business District). 

  
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
  
8. PRESENTATION 

A. Proclamation recognizing Diaper Awareness Week presented to 
Mark Clack, General Manager, Domtar Personal Care 

B. Proclamation recognizing National Preparedness Month presented 
to Chief John Donahue 

 
9. 7:20 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND THIRD READING OF Ordinance No. 

18-77, an ordinance determining that the petition for the establishment 
of the Terra Alta Community Authority complies as to form and 
substance with the requirements of Section 349.03 of the Ohio Revised 
Code and to fix a date and place for a public hearing on that petition, 
and declaring an emergency.   

 
10. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-70, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Seattle 
House Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 
519-444-01-001-001)from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) and B-
3 Community Business District) to R-6 and B-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on the north side of US 36/37 and the 
south side of Bowtown Road just east of the Chesrown Auto Storage Lot.  

 
11. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-71, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Seattle House Apartments (240 units) on 
approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-001) and located on 
the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east 
of the Chesrown Auto Storage Lot.  



3 
 

 
12. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-72, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 
Seattle House Apartments 9240 Units) on approximately 24.212 acres 
(parcel 519-444-01-001-001) zoned R-6 and B-3 PMU (Multi-Family 
Residential District and Community Business District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of US 36/37 
and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the Chesrown Auto 
Storage Lot.  

 
13. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-73, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the 
Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres 
(parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 (Multi-
Family Residential District) to R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential with a 
Planned Mixed Use overlay District) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments.  

 
14. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-74, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on 
approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-
10-021-000) and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of 
Village Gate Apartments.  

 
15. THIRD READING Ordinance No. 18-75, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 
Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres 
(parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) zoned R-6 PMU 
(Multi-Family Residential with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and 
located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate 
Apartments.  

 
16. THIRD READING of Resolution No. 18-50, a resolution adopting the 

2019-2023 Five-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 
 
17. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-80, an ordinance accepting the 

annexation of 221.341 ± acres of land more or less, description and map 
are attached hereto as exhibits “A” and “B” for the annexation known as 
the Central Ohio Boy Scouts of America – Camp Lazarus Annexation by 
Michael R. Shade, Agent for the Petitioners.   

 
18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-81, an ordinance amending 



4 
 

Section 917.05 of the Delaware Codified Ordinances modifying industrial 
pre-treatment limits for silver and mercury.  

 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-82, an ordinance approving a 

Final Subdivision Plat request by Medrock LLC., for Willowbrook Retail 
Phase 2 on approximately 3.324 acres zoned B-4 PUD (General Business 
District with a Planned Unit Development District) and located on the 
south side of US 36 and on the west side of South Houk Road.  

 
20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-83, an ordinance approving an 

Amended Final Development Plan request by Source Point for a Parking 
Lot Expansion on approximately 11.41 acres zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional District) and located at 800 Cheshire Road.   

 
21.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-84, an ordinance for Mystic Golf 

and Games LLC for approval of a Conditional Use Permit request for 
Mystic Golf and Games at 1159 Columbus Pike within the Delaware 
Square Shopping Center and zoned B-3 (Community Business District).  

 
22. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-85, an ordinance amending the 

Management, Professional, Technical, Confidential, and Supervisory 
Employees Pay Plan.  

 
23. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
24. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
25. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM D DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-51 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AMOUNTS AND RATES AS DETERMINED BY 
THE BUDGET COMMISSION AND AUTHORIZING THE NECESSARY TAX 
LEVIES AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR FOR TAX YEAR 
2018/BUDGET YEAR 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Before October 1st of each year, the City is required by Ohio Revised Code to 
authorize through resolution the tax levy rates for the upcoming budget year.  
These rates provide the County with an amount to tax each landowner within 
the taxing district in order to collect the amount due to the City for real estate 
taxes in the next calendar year.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Ohio Revised Code § 5705.34 requires “Each taxing authority, by ordinance or 
resolution, shall authorize the necessary tax levies and certify them to the county 
auditor before the first day of October in each year” 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
None 
 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
2019 Schedule A, Official Certificate of Estimated Resources 



RESOLUTION NO.18-51 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AMOUNTS AND 
RATES AS DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET 
COMMISSION AND AUTHORIZING THE NECESSARY 
TAX LEVIES AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE COUNTY 
AUDITOR FOR TAX YEAR 2018/BUDGET YEAR 2019. 

 
 

WHEREAS, The Budget Commission of Delaware County, Ohio has 
certified its action thereon to this Council together with an estimate by the 
County Auditor of the rate of each tax necessary to be levied by this Council, and 
what part thereof is without, and what part within the ten mill tax limitation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the amounts and rates, as determined by the Budget 

Commission in its certification, be and the same are hereby accepted. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That there be and is hereby levied on the tax duplicate of the 
City of Delaware the rate of each tax necessary to be levied within and without 
the ten mill limitation as provided in Schedule A hereby attached.  
 
 SECTION 3. That the Clerk of Council be, and is hereby directed to certify 
a copy of this Resolution to the County Auditor of said County. 
 

SECTION 4.  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after passage. 

 
SECTION 5.   That the Council of the City of Delaware, Delaware, County, 

Ohio met in regular session on the  ____ day of September, 2018 in City Council 
Chambers: 

 
Mr./Ms.                                             moved to adopt the following 

Resolution, seconded by Mr./Ms.                                            and the roll being 
called upon its adoption the vote resulted as follows: 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________        ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM E DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-52 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH DELAWARE COUNTY FOR THE 
INSTALLATION OF A TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT THE INTERSECTION OF US 23 AND 
GLENN PARKWAY-PEACHBLOW ROAD. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2010, the City re-aligned Peachblow Road and Winter Road at US 23 and 
introduced the intersection of Glenn Parkway and US 23.  Technically, Glenn 
Parkway is also Peachblow Road at the intersection with US 23.  The project 
was built with State and Federal dollars in partnership with ODOT, and it 
established a new southern gateway into the City of Delaware.  The intersection 
was built immediately outside of the City limits, however, it was critical for the 
City to remain in control of the alignment of Glenn Parkway, hence the reason 
the City took the lead position on the project.  The design for the 2010 project 
did account for the future installation of a mast arm signal at the new 23 & 
Glenn Parkway intersection.  However, there was not enough side street traffic 
in 2010 to warrant the signal being installed.  Therefore, only underground 
conduits were installed for the future signal.  The warrant for a signal was re-
visited in 2017 and now it is time to finish the design and installation of the 
signal.  The Public Works Department has identified partners – ODOT, 
Delaware County - to assist in designing and constructing this signal in time 
for the expanded Delaware Area Career Center (DACC) campus opening in 



August of 2019.  The following is an outline of how the collaborative effort will 
unfold: 
 

• ODOT will provide design plans for the completion of the mast-arm 
installation early this month 

• City will bid the project in October of 2018 and oversee construction: 
o Foundations will  be installed before Winter 2018 
o Mast-arms will be manufactured and painted during the Winter of 

2018 
o Signal will be erected in the Spring of 2019; 

• ODOT to provide (lightly) used traffic signal equipment in order to reduce 
the overall cost of the project by an estimated $50,000; 

• Delaware County to contribute $50,000 towards the project pending 
a Cooperation Agreement being approved; 

• ODOT to issue a permit to construct based on traffic analysis already in 
place; 

• ODOT will own/maintain the signal after construction.  If the 
intersection is annexed into the City in the future, this arrangement may 
change. 

 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This Resolution is required in order for the City Manager to sign an 
intergovernmental agreement.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
A conservative preliminary estimate for the items to be bid out to the 
contracting community is $200,000, which would result in a City obligation of 
$150,000 considering a Delaware County contribution of $50,000.  
Furthermore, the City is pursuing a commitment from DACC to split this 
$150,000 cost.  City costs will be funded by the New Community Authority 
(NCA) for Glenn Parkway.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-52 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH 
DELAWARE COUNTY FOR THE INSTALLATION OF A 
TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT THE INTERSECTION OF US 23 
AND GLENN PARKWAY-PEACHBLOW ROAD. 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Delaware provides financial assistance to political 
subdivisions building multi-jurisdictional infrastructure projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware seeks to improve highway safety at the 
intersection of US 23 & Glenn Parkway-Peachblow Road by completing the 
installation of a traffic signal; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvement herein above described is 
considered to be a priority need for the community and is a qualified project under 
the County Cooperation Agreement Program.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 

 
 SECTION 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter in to a 
Cooperative Agreement with Delaware County for their contribution not to exceed 
$50,000 to the City of Delaware for the US 23 & Glenn Parkway-Peachblow Road 
Signal Improvements Project.   

 
 SECTION 2.  That the City of Delaware agrees to be the designated lead 
agency, bidding the project and managing the construction of the project.  

  
 SECTION 3.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  9    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18- 77   RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       September 10, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING THAT THE PETITION FOR THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF THE TERRA ALTA COMMUNITY AUTHORITY COMPLIES 
AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 
349.03 OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE AND TO FIX A DATE AND PLACE FOR A 
PUBLIC HEARING ON THAT PETITION, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
09/10/2018 UPDATE: 
The current draft of the ordinance has been amended to correct the hearing date 
required after the passage of this legislation.   Ordinance 18-77 is the first step 
in the NCA process, simply stating the petition was sufficient.  After this 
legislation passes, separate legislation will be introduced to approve the NCA.  In 
addition, this ordinance establishes the hearing date required by ORC.  The 
current draft sets the public hearing date for October 8, which would require 
Council to approve Ordinance 18-77 on September 10 along with an emergency 
clause and the applicant to advertise the hearing for three consecutive weeks. 
City staff received on September 6 additional information requested from the 
applicant needed to evaluate the NCA request (see enclosed).    
  
08/23/2018 UPDATE: 
At the August 13 meeting, Council requested the City Attorney compile a list of 
potential criteria for future NCA petitions.  City staff continues to work towards 



a draft for consideration by Council at a future meeting.  In the meantime, City 
Manager Tom Homan and Planning Director Dave Efland met with the current 
applicant to discuss the pending petition.  Further updates will be provided at 
the meeting.  
 
08/13/2018: 
A New Community Authority (NCA) is a charge put on residents’ property tax bill 
to help pay for infrastructure in the authority area.  The charge is usually used 
as a tool to facilitate future development.   
 
The City has two existing NCAs, which were created to help finance 
infrastructure put in by the City after the formation of the NCA. When the 
infrastructure is paid off, the charges will be removed from the taxes in the 
existing NCAs. 
 
The City has experienced some issues with residents in the current NCAs.  For 
example, the charge is often a source of confusion for residents who do not 
understand what the charge pays for.  Some residents feel the charge is too high.  
Because it is based on millage (property tax value), owners of new houses are 
often surprised by the charge even though it was disclosed, because the tax rate 
on the auditor’s website is based on the value of the land when it was vacant.  
Finally, during the levy campaign, residents in the NCA indicated they felt their 
NCA charge should already cover roads and were therefore reluctant to approve 
additional taxes. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Statutory process  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The petition anticipates 2250 new residents will reside in the district at full build 
out. The requested NCA would add a 7.5 mills charge to each parcel of property 
in the district.  This would result in a $.75 charge for each $1,000 of assessed 
valuation, which would appear on the residents’ property tax bill. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
The present request being brought forward by the developer differs from our 
existing NCAs in the following ways. First, it would reimburse the developer as 
opposed to the City.  Second, the developer has indicated that it is intended to 
help finance amenities, but the majority of the items the developer would be 
reimbursed for through the charge are infrastructure items that traditionally are 
a developer’s responsibility to install. Third, part of the charge would go towards 
reimbursing the developer for infrastructure that has already been built, which 
does not fit with the City’s prior use of an NCA to finance future development.  
Finally, the proposed NCA has no set end date. 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff is concerned that by adding a significant cost to the property tax bill of 
2250 new residents of the city, it will make it more difficult for city and school 
levies to pass.  In addition, based on the volume of calls generated by the existing 
NCAs, staff anticipates additional staff time will be required to help these new 
residents understand the charge.  Finally, staff believes approving this NCA will 
set a precedent for future NCA requests.  To the extent these expenses are related 
to amenities, they could be financed by a homeowners association (HOA) charge, 
which would make it clear what the charge is paying for and eliminate any 
confusion over perceived increased taxes.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Petition 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 18-77  
 

AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING THAT THE 
PETITION FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE 
TERRA ALTA COMMUNITY AUTHORITY 
COMPLIES AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE WITH 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 349.03 OF 
THE OHIO REVISED CODE AND TO FIX A DATE 
AND PLACE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THAT 
PETITION, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code, TERRA 

ALTA, LLC (the “Developer”), has filed a petition (the “Petition”) with Clerk of 
Council for the City of Delaware (the “City”) as required by Chapter 349.03(A) of 
the Ohio Revised Code, with that Petition being for the establishment of The 
Terra Alta Community Authority (the “Authority”) and its proposed new 
community district (the “District”); and   

 
WHEREAS, this Council comprises the “organizational board of 

commissioners” for the proposed Authority, as that term is defined in Section 
349.01(F) of the Ohio Revised Code; and  

 
WHEREAS, the land to be included in the District is owned by or is under 

the control of the Developer within the meaning of Section 349.01(E) of the Ohio 
Revised Code; and  

 
WHEREAS, this Council has reviewed the Petition to determine whether it 

complies with the requirements of Section 349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code as 
to form and substance; and 

  
WHEREAS, this Council desires to fix a time and place of a public hearing 

on the Petition, which public hearing will be held not less than 30 days nor more 
than 45 days from the date the Petition was filed with the Clerk of this Council, 
and desires that notice of that public hearing be given, all pursuant to Section 
349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio:  
 
 SECTION 1. This Council hereby finds and determines that the Petition 
complies as to form and substance with the requirements of Section 349.03 of 
the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
 SECTION 2. This Council will hold a public hearing on the Petition on 
Monday, October 8, 2018, commencing at 7:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 
Delaware City Hall, One South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015.  



2 
 

 
 SECTION 3. The Clerk of Council arrange for notice of that public hearing 
by publication once each week for three consecutive weeks in a newspaper of 
general circulation in Delaware County in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

SECTION 4. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council and any of its 
committees, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees 
that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in 
compliance with the law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 SECTION 5. EMERGENCY CLAUSE. That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 
safety, health, and welfare of the City and to timely advance consideration of the 
Petition of the Developer to enable the City to receive the full benefit of the 
proposed development.  

 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:    YEAS _____   NAYS_____ 

ABSTAIN_______ 
 
PASSED:___________________ , 2018    YEAS______   NAYS_____ 

ABSTAIN_______ 
 
 

ATTEST:______________________   ______________________                                    
      CITY CLERK     MAYOR    

     



From: R Thomas Homan
To: Kim Gepper
Subject: FW: Terra Alta NCA
Date: Thursday, September 6, 2018 2:49:36 PM

 
 

From: David W. Fisher <davidfisher@kephartfisher.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 6, 2018 11:23 AM
To: R Thomas Homan <rthoman@delawareohio.net>
Cc: David M. Efland <defland@delawareohio.net>; vromanelli@rh-homes.com; 'Marty Savko'
<msavko@nicksavko.com>; 'Jim Ohlin' <johlin@rh-homes.com>; 'Michael Shade' <mrs@ss-
dta.com>; Cuckler, Steven R. <scuckler@taftlaw.com>; Dave Dye <ddye@omnihoa.com>
Subject: Terra Alta NCA
 

***ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or
click on links from unknown senders or unexpected emails.***

 
Tom – Thanks again for the recent meeting. In response to the matters you
asked that we consider and address, I would offer the following:
 

1.     Development Costs to be reimbursed from NCA millage – Based on our
discussions, our Team took a hard look at amenities and upgrades that
were project specific. Our revised list is as follows:
 

$350,000 – Walking Trails
$215,000  Common Area Features
$270,000 – Parks and Recreation Amenities
$1,600,000 – Community Pools
$175,000 – Landscaping/Engineering for community pools
$500,000 – Enhanced Entrance Features
$200,000 – Street Trees
$100,000 – Offsite Water Reimbursement
$430,000 – Stockdale offsite sanitary with engineering
$200,000 – Easements
$650,000 – Braumiller Round-a-bout

 
TOTAL REQUEST - $4,690,000

mailto:rthoman@delawareohio.net
mailto:kgepper@delawareohio.net


 
2.     You requested that we consider some additional millage from the NCA

for payment directly to the City to provide funds to improve the open
space along the river frontage adjacent to Terra Alta. We are willing to
do so and would propose 0.5 mils of the NCA charge to be paid to the
City for these purposes. By our calculations, at full build out, this would
yield an annual payment to the City of approximately $56,000.

3.     Based on items 1 and 2 above, we would request a 5.5 mil charge, with 5
mils going to reimbursement of development costs under item 1 above
and 0.5 mils going to the City under item 2 above.

4.     We discussed the NCA continuing on in perpetuity for purposes of the
real estate tax exemption. We would be willing to limit millage after all
bonds are paid to fund items 1 and 2 above to a minor millage to cover
administrative costs and propose a 1.0 mil limit. Keep in mind that after
the bonds are repaid, the elected Board of the NCA will be incented to
act in the interest of the property owners to keep costs and resulting
NCA millage to a minimum.

5.     You requested that we provide to you a summary of HOA fees being
charged around Central Ohio for communities comparable to Terra Alta.
Our HOA Team who manages communities all over central Ohio provided
the following summary:
 
Here’s a sampling from Delaware County only, you can see there are big
differences, typically a function of how much open space.  I’m not
including HOA names, because I’m not sure I’m “cleared” to do so by
each community to share their specifics as to dues amount…

 
Lot
Count

2018
Dues  

29 675  
65 400  
78 300  
85 115  
92 800  



96 225  
96 298  

105 200  
123 225  

136 350
plus $500
pool

150 900  
176 135  
195 135  
264 105  
368 80  

 
 

6.     At your request, we asked our NCA counsel Greg Stype to reach out to
the City’s bond counsel Greg Daniels to discuss all required legislation to
fully adopt and implement the NCA. It is my understanding that they
have exchanged voicemails but have not yet connected. Greg Stype was
out for several days at the end of last week for a family funeral but
assures me he will reach out again to Greg Daniels this AM. I saw an
email this AM between the two that suggests these conversations are
occurring.

 
I trust this email addresses all the items you requested. If further information
or detail is required, please let me know.
 
It is our understanding that the public hearing on the Terra Alta NCA is
scheduled for next Monday evening September 10. If there is anything further
you require before then, or if there are questions with respect to the
information set forth above, please do not hesitate to contact me.
 
Regards,

 
 

 
 



David Fisher
Principal
Kephart Fisher LLC | Attorneys At Law 
207 North Fourth Street | Columbus, Ohio 43215 
P: 614.469.1882 | F: 614.469.1887 
E: davidfisher@kephartfisher.com
W:http://www.kephartfisher.com

 

 

TAX DISCLOSURE:
Pursuant to U.S. Treasury Department Circular 230, we are informing you that any U.S. federal tax advice
contained in this communication (including any attachments hereto) was not intended or written to be
used, and cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding tax penalties that may be imposed
on the taxpayers.

CONFIDENTIALITY DISCLOSURE:
This electronic transmission and any attachments contain confidential information belonging to the sender
which is legally privileged. The information is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named
above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or the taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this electronic transmission is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this electronic transmission in error, please immediately notify us by
telephone at (614) 469-1882.

 
 
 
 

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information and is intended for the person/entity to whom it was originally
addressed. Any use by others is strictly prohibited.

mailto:davidfisher@kephartfisher.com
http://www.kephartfisher.com/
















































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 10    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-70    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 
UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-001-001) 
FROM R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND B-3 (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO R-6 AND B-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF US 36/37 AND THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN AUTO 
STORAGE LOT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on August 1, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-70 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE 
SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-
001-001) FROM R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) AND B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) 
TO R-6 AND B-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF US 
36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD 
JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018  
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) and B-3 (Community Business 
District) to R-6 and B-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on 
the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot (PC Case 2018-1394).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) and B-3 (Community Business 
District) to R-6 and B-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on 
the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require 
conformance to all provision of the Development Text and any conditions 
of approval. 

2. Any revisions to the public or private street layout shall require 
conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 

3. The maximum amount of multi-family dwelling units permitted in Sub-
Area 4 shall not exceed 240 dwelling units. 

4. The several mature trees along Bowtown Road shall be preserved along 
with constructing a minimum 10 foot high mound with minimum 6 foot 
high evergreens planted in a soldier course manner along Bowtown Road 



to provide a consistent year round buffer. The subject mound shall wrap 
around the eastern portion of the site to screen the adjacent single 
family house. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 11    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-71    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:30 p.m.  
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE 
SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 
ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-001-001) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE 
OF US 36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST OF 
THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on August 1, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-71 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING 
THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE 
SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-
001-001) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF US 
36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD 
JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) and located on the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown 
Road just east of the Chesrown auto storage lot (PC Case 2018-1395).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) and located on the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown 
Road just east of the Chesrown auto storage lot, is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-72    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE SEATTLE HOUSE 
APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 
519-444-01-001-001) ZONED R-6 AND B-3 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF US 36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST 
OF THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-1 on August 1, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-72 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  
FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR THE  SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 
UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 
519-444-01-001-001) ZONED R-6 AND B-3 PMU (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF US 36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF 
BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN 
AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) zoned R-6 and B-3 (Multi-Family Residential District and Community 
Business District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the 
north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot (PC Case 2018-1396).   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) zoned R-6 and B-3 (Multi-Family Residential District and Community 
Business District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the 
north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The traffic impact study shall be approved by the City and the developer 
shall be responsible for any improvements and/or financial obligations of 
the traffic impact study per the City Engineer and/or County Engineer. 

3. The north/south access road and Bilmore Drive shall be constructed per 
the City Engineer. 



4. The emergency only access road from Bowtown Road to the apartment 
complex shall be constructed per the City Engineer and Fire 
Department. 

5. A bike path shall be conducted on the north side of Biltmore Drive per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027 and a sidewalk 
shall be required on the south side of Biltmore Drive. 

6. A sidewalk shall be constructed on the south side of Bowtown Road. 

7. The developer shall make a payment in lieu of constructing a sidewalk 
on the east side of the north/south connector road. The City Engineer 
shall determine the required payment in lieu prior to Final Development 
Plan approval. 

8. The density of the multi-family portion of the development (Sub-Area A) 
shall not exceed 240 units. 

9. The one and two bedroom apartment unit sizes shall range in size 
between a minimum 678 (one bedroom) to 933 (two bedroom) square 
feet. 

10. The height of the buildings shall not exceed 42 feet (to the peak of the 
eave) and shall not exceed 3 stories. 

11. The apartment building elevations fronting Bowtown Road and proposed 
Biltmore Drive shall have the majority of the elevation constructed of 
brick or stone with vinyl used as an accent material.  Hardi plank or 
equivalent could be substituted for the vinyl siding to meet natural 
material requirements as well. Any limestone on the buildings shall be 
constructed of Delaware blue vein limestone or equivalent as approved 
by staff. 

12. The trash compactor enclosure shall be constructed of brick or stone 
wall to match the buildings and have wood doors painted to match and 
shall be buffered form the residential property to the east,. 

13. The apartment and the commercial out lot frontage along the 
north/south access road and Biltmore Drive shall require street and 
shade trees along with a 2-3 foot high undulating mounding with 
landscaping (a mixture of deciduous trees, evergreen trees and shrubs). 

14. The several mature trees along Bowtown Road shall be preserved along 
with constructing a minimum 10 foot high mounding with minimum 6 
foot high evergreens planted in a soldier course manner along Bowtown 
Road to provide a consistent year round buffer. The subject mound shall 
wrap around the eastern portion of the site to screen the adjacent single 
family house. 

15. The parking islands within the apartment development shall be planted 
with street trees. 



16. All landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

17. The open space within the apartment development shall have additional 
amenities, detailed during Final Development Plan process including 
pavilions, benches, dog parks, recreational fields and the like. Any field 
space shall be flat and shall not provide storm water drains except at the 
edges of the area to eliminate catch basins being located in the middle of 
any field surface.   

18. Lighting plans that achieves compliance with the zoning code and 
approved development text that would need to be approved by the Chief 
Building Official shall be required with Final Development Plan 
submittal. 

19. A comprehensive sign plan that achieves compliance with the zoning 
code requirements, the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridors Plan shall be required with the Final 
Development Plan submittal. 

20. The garages shall not be rented out to any non-residents of the 
apartment complex or for any use or occupancy other than storage of 
vehicles. 

21. The private street names shall be submitted and approved by the City 
and other appropriate agencies.  

22. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the Fire 
Department and Public Works development final requirements after the 
final review is complete. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-73    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 
UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-020-000 
AND 519-442-10-021-000) FROM R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) TO R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a 4-3 vote on August 
1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-73 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE 
HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-
020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) FROM R-6 (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-6 PMU (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF VILLAGE 
GATE APARTMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission  at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommend approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Highpoint Place 
Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-
000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) to R-6 
PMU (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) 
and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate 
Apartments (PC Case 2018-1402).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns the 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of the Rezoning 
Amendment for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 
16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 
(Multi-Family Residential District) to R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require 
conformance to all provision of the Development Text and any conditions 
of approval. 

2. Any revisions the public or private street layout shall require 
conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 

3. The maximum amount of multi-family dwelling units permitted shall not 
exceed 160 dwelling units. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 



this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-74    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE 
HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 
ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a vote 4-3 on August 
1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-74 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  
FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED 
FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-
10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) AND LOCATED 
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST 
OF VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the 
Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 
519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments (PC Case 2018-1403). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns the 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of a Conditional Use 
Permit allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 
16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) and located 
on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-75    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE 
APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-
442-10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) ZONED R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a vote of 4-3 on 
August 1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 



N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-75 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-
10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) ZONED R-6 PMU 
(MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommend approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Highpoint 
Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-
020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side 
of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments (PC Case 2018-1404). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of the Preliminary 
Development Plan for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on 
approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-
000) zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of 
Village Gate Apartments, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The traffic impact study shall be approved by the City and the developer 
shall be responsible for any improvements and/or financial obligations of 
the traffic impact study per the City Engineer and/or County Engineer. 

3. Ferguson Avenue from Bowtown Road shall be extended north to the 
adjacent property line per the City Engineer. 

4. The developer shall dedicate the appropriate right-of-way and make a 
payment in lieu to be determined by the City Engineer for the Ferguson 



Avenue extension along the northern portion of the property that would 
be constructed when the adjacent properties are developed. 

5. A bike path shall be constructed on the east side of Ferguson Avenue per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027 and a side walk 
shall be required on the west side of Ferguson Avenue. 

6. A bike path shall be constructed on the north side of Bowtown Road per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027. 

7. The density of the multi-family portion of the development shall not 
exceed 160 units. 

8. The one and two bedroom apartment unit sizes shall range in size 
between a minimum 678 (one bedroom) to 933 (two bedroom) square 
feet. 

9. The height of the buildings shall not exceed 42 feet (to the peak of the 
eave) and shall not exceed 3 stories. 

10. The apartment building elevations shall have the majority of the 
elevation constructed of brick or stone with vinyl used as an accent 
material on the public view side of the building.  Hardi plank or 
equivalent could be substituted for the vinyl siding to meet natural 
material requirements as well. Any limestone on the buildings shall be 
constructed of Delaware blue vein limestone or equivalent as approved 
by staff. 

11. The Ferguson Avenue right-of-way shall be setback a minimum 20 feet 
from the residential property to the west, 

12. The trash compactor enclosure shall be constructed of brick or stone 
wall to match the buildings and have wood doors painted to match and 
shall be buffered form the residential property to the east,. 

13. The road frontage along Ferguson Avenue and Bowtown Road that is not 
adjacent to a single family property shall have a 2-3 foot high undulating 
mound with landscaping (a mixture of deciduous trees, evergreen trees 
and shrubs) 

14. A 5-6 foot high mound with landscaping and minimum 6 foot high 
evergreen trees planted in a soldier course manner shall be required  
along the east  and west side of Ferguson Avenue adjacent to the existing 
single family properties fronting Bowtown Road 

15. The parking islands within the apartment development shall be planted 
with street trees. 

16. All landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

17. The open space within the apartment development shall have more 
amenities including pavilions, benches, dog park, recreational fields and 



the like  and to ensure any field space is flat and does not provide storm 
water drains except at the edges of the area to eliminate catch basins 
being located in the middle of any playing surface.   

18. The tree preservation area shall be located within a permanent 
preservation easement with the appropriate language that would need to 
be reviewed and approved by staff and then be recorded at the County. 

19. Lighting plans that achieves compliance with the zoning code and 
approved development text that would need to be approved by the Chief 
Building Official shall be required with Final Development Plan 
submittal. 

20. A comprehensive sign plan that achieves compliance with the zoning 
code requirements, the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridors Plan shall be required with the Final 
Development Plan submittal. 

21. The private street names shall be submitted and approved by the City 
and other appropriate agencies.  

22. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the Fire 
Department and Public Works development final requirements after the 
final review is complete. 

23. An emergency access location shall be located through the Village Gate 
Apartments to the east if possible. If not possible another location shall 
be established and approved by the City Engineer and Fire Department 
prior to Final Development Plan submittal. 

24. The garages shall not be rented out to any non-residents of the 
apartment complex or for any use or occupancy other than storage of 
vehicles. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-50 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2019-2023 FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A work session to discuss the CIP has been scheduled for Thursday, September 
6 and Monday, October 1. 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Pursuant to Section 79 of the Charter, the CIP is to be submitted to City 
Council by August 15 and adopted no later than October 15.  Adoption is 
scheduled for Council’s October 8 meeting. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
CIP 



RESOLUTION 18-50 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2019-2023 FIVE-
YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). 

 
 WHEREAS, a revised Five-Year Capital Improvements Program was 
prepared and submitted to City Council in accordance with Article XVII, 
Section 79 of the City Charter; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council has considered the proposed plan and has 
determined that it shall be the future public improvement plan for the City of 
Delaware; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article XVII, Section 80 of the City Charter requires that City 
Council adopt, by resolution, the Five-Year Capital Improvements Program on 
or before October 15; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council will review the 2019-2023 CIP at Work Sessions 
before October 8. 
 
 WHEREAS, Council discussed possible amendments to the plan which 
may be considered as part of the adopted 2019 budget.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the 2019-2023 Five-Year Capital Improvements 
Program for the General Fund, Airport, Fire, Police, Public Works, Parks, 
Equipment Replacement, Technology, Building Maintenance, Water, Sewer, 
Storm Sewer, Refuse, Parks Impact, Police Impact, and Fire Impact attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted as the official plan for future public 
improvements. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage.   
 
 
PASSED:     _____________________, 2018  YEAS ____     NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: __________________________     ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







3

4

7

17

 20

23

28

33



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-80    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 221.341± ACRES OF 
LAND MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS THE CENTRAL 
OHIO BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA – CAMP LAZARUS ANNEXATION BY 
MICHAEL R. SHADE,  AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This process involves several steps and actions by the County and City in order 
for an annexation to ultimately be accepted by the City.  The City took the first 
city step in the process which required determination of services the City could 
provide – the Resolution of Services passed June 11, 2018 via Resolution 18-
36.  The legislation before City Council currently is the final acceptance of 
annexation which would bring the property into the City.  City Council must 
decide to accept, accept with conditions, or deny the annexation.  If no action 
is taken by the ORC dictated time frame ending on November 1, 2018, ORC 
dictates that the annexation will be denied.  The applicant wishes to begin the 
rezoning process prior to final action by City Council and thus multiple 
readings of this legislation are anticipated with passage anticipated prior to the 
ORC required date of November 1, 2018.  The last scheduled City Council 
meeting date prior to November 1 is the meeting of October 22, 2018.  The 
anticipated zoning request for this unique set of uses is to a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay.  Additionally, there is a small shooting range that has existed on this 
site and is still used by the Camp.  Section 549.08 – Pointing and Discharging 



Firearms of the City of Delaware Codified Ordinances generally prohibits the 
discharging of firearms for a range.  The City Attorney, Chief of Police, and 
Director of Planning have been working on an amendment to this section to 
allow for the continuation of this use but to ensure it is limited to very a 
specific pre-existing situation such as this.  This legislation is anticipated to be 
introduced at the City Council meeting of September 24, 2018 for first reading 
and the setting of a public hearing on October 8, 2018 to allow it to be reviewed 
and decided concurrently with the annexation review on October 22, 2018.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Ohio Revised Code provides the process that annexations must follow 
throughout Ohio.  This legislation is the final City step in the process to 
formally accept the annexation of the property.  The City has until November 1, 
2018 to pass this acceptance of annexation Ordinance or it is considered by 
ORC to be denied.  The applicant wishes to begin the rezoning process prior to 
final action by City Council and thus multiple readings of this legislation are 
anticipated with passage anticipated prior to the ORC required date of 
November 1, 2018. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval by Third Reading  
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
County Resolution  
Petition 
Map 
City Resolution  



ORDINANCE NO. 18-80 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 
221.341± ACRES OF LAND MORE OR LESS, 
DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN 
AS THE CENTRAL OHIO BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA – 
CAMP LAZARUS ANNEXATION BY MICHAEL R. SHADE, 
 AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 

 
 

WHEREAS, Michael R. Shade, agent for the petitioners, has filed with the 
Delaware County Commissioners for annexation of 221.341 acres of land, more or 
less, the description and map are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B; and 
 

WHEREAS, Michael R. Shade, as agent for the petitioners on June 6, 2018 
delivered to the Clerk of the Delaware City Council the notice of his filing of the 
annexation petition with the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County 
and its clerk on June 6, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code requires that within 20 days following 
the date the petition is filed, the City Council shall, by resolution, adopt a 
statement as to what services, if any, the City will provide and an approximate 
date by which it will provide them to the territory proposed for annexation, upon 
annexation, which was completed when City Council passed a Resolution of 
Services on June 11, 2018 via Resolution 18-36; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed annexation applied for in the petition to the 

Delaware County Commissioners has been approved, by them for annexation to 
the City of Delaware on June 25 2018 (See attached)  The territory to be annexed 
is described in the attached Exhibits “A” and “B”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation, with 
an accurate map of the territory, together with the petition of annexation and 
other papers relating to the proceedings of the County Commissioners, are on file 
with the Clerk of Council, and have been for more than sixty days. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Council hereby accepts the annexation of 221.341 acres 
of land, description and plat of which are hereby attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” 
on the annexation known as the Joshua Morgan Annexation by Michael R. Shade, 



agent for the petitioners with the following conditions that: 
 

1. That upon annexation to the City of Delaware of 221.341± acres more or 
less as delineated on the attached Exhibits A and B, the Applicant/Property 
Owner at their sole expense shall provide and install all necessary lines, 
hydrants, and other appurtenances as required by the City in order to 
receive city utility services. 

 
SECTION 2.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to make five copies of this 

ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the map accompanying the 
petition for annexation, a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the Board of 
County Commissioners relating thereto, and a certificate as to the correctness 
thereof. The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the Secretary of State, 
and shall file notice of annexation with the Board of Elections, the County Auditor, 
the County Recorder, and the County Engineer within thirty days after it becomes 
effective, and the Clerk shall do all other things required by law. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 























































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  18    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-81    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       September 24, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Blake Jordan, Director of Public Utilities 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 917.05 OF THE DELAWARE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES MODIFYING INDUSTRIAL PRE-TREATMENT LIMITS FOR 
SILVER AND MERCURY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
With every renewal of the WWTP’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) permit the City is required to conduct a technical justification 
of the treatment plant’s capabilities. During this cycle’s renewal, after weighing 
current residential loading vs. treatment capability, the following changes to 
industrial user limits are being recommended.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To ensure that the Wastewater Treatment Plant’s effluent discharge into the 
Olentangy River is able to remain in compliance with EPA mandated limits. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
None. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 



Section 917.05(d) of the Delaware Codified Ordinances lists the allowable 
discharge limits of users.  Mercury and silver limits would be amended as 
noted in supporting documents, specifically, allowable silver discharge from 
industrial users will drop from .5mg/L to .2mg/L and allowable mercury 
discharge from industrial users from .003mg/L to .0009mg/L.  However, none 
of the users in the city presently discharge this much mercury or silver. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
OEPA approval letter for the proposed changes to the pretreatment program. 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-81 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 917.05 OF THE 
DELAWARE CODIFIED ORDINANCES MODIFYING 
INDUSTRIAL PRE-TREATMENT LIMITS FOR SILVER 
AND MERCURY. 
 

 WHEREAS, with each renewal of the Waste Water Treatment Plant’s 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit, the City is required to 
conduct a technical justification of the treatment plant’s capabilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, reducing limits for silver and mercury will ensure that the 
wastewater treatment plant continues to remain in compliance with EPA 
mandated limits; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  Section 917.05 of the Delaware Codified Ordinances is 
amended as follows: 
 
917.05. - Limitations on wastewater strength.  
(a)  National Categorical Pretreatment Standards. National Categorical Pretreatment Standards as 

promulgated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) pursuant to the Act, shall be met 
by all discharges of the regulated industrial categories. An application for modification of the National 
Categorical Pretreatment Standards may be considered for submittal to the Regional Administrator by the 
Authority, when the Authority's wastewater treatment system achieves consistent removal of the 
pollutants as defined by 40 CFR 403.7.  

(b)  Right of Revision. The Authority reserves the right to amend this chapter to provide for more stringent 
limitations or requirements on discharges to the POTW where deemed necessary.  

(c)  Dilution. No discharger shall increase the use of potable or process water in any way nor mix separate 
wastestreams for the purpose of diluting a discharge as a partial or complete substitute for adequate 
treatment to achieve compliance with the standards or limitations set forth in this chapter.  

(d)  Supplementary Limitations. No discharger shall discharge wastewater containing concentrations of the 
following enumerated materials exceeding the following values:  

 Concentration  

Materials  (UG/L)  

Arsenic  200  

Cadmium  100  



Chromium, Total  4700  

Chromium, Hexavalent  300  

Copper  1400  

Cyanide, Total  600  

Lead  1200  

Mercury  3 .9 

Nickel  1000  

Selenium  200  

Silver  500 200 

Sulfides  50,000  

Zinc  5800  

Toxic Substances  Prohibited  

  
The Authority may impose mass limitations on dischargers where the imposition of such limitations is 

deemed appropriate by the Authority.  

(e)  The Authority may convert mass per unit of production limits in pretreatment standards to equivalent 
mass per day or concentration limits. These equivalent limits shall be deemed pretreatment standards 
which industrial users will be required to comply with in lieu of promulgated standards.  

  
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  19    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-82    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY 
MEDROCK LLC., FOR WILLOWBROOK RETAIL PHASE 2 ON APPROXIMATELY 
3.324 ACRES ZONED B-4 PUD (GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE SOUTH 
SIDE OF US 36 AND ON THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH HOUK ROAD.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on September 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-82 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT REQUEST BY MEDROCK LLC., FOR 
WILLOWBROOK RETAIL PHASE 2 ON APPROXIMATELY 
3.324 ACRES ZONED B-4 PUD (GENERAL BUSINESS 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF US 
36 AND ON THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH HOUK ROAD.  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of September 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat request by Medrock LLC., for 
Willowbrook Retail Development Phase 2 on approximately 3.324 acres zoned B-4 
PUD (General Business District with a Planned Unit Development District) and 
located on the south side of US 36 and on the west side of South Houk Road (PC 
2018-2255).  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat request by Medrock LLC., for 
Willowbrook Retail Development Phase 2 on approximately 3.324 acres zoned B-4 
PUD (General Business District with a Planned Unit Development District) and 
located on the south side of US 36 and on the west side of South Houk Road is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  20    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-83    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
REQUEST BY SOURCE POINT  FOR A PARKING LOT EXPANSION ON 
APPROXIMATELY 11.41 ACRES ZONED PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 800 CHESHIRE 
ROAD.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on September 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-83 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST BY SOURCE POINT  
FOR A PARKING LOT EXPANSION ON APPROXIMATELY 
11.41 ACRES ZONED PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 
800 CHESHIRE ROAD. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of September 5, 2018 
recommended approval of an Amended Final Development Plan request by Source 
Point for a parking lot expansion on approximately 11.41 acres zoned PO/I 
(Planned Office/Institutional District) and located at 800 Cheshire Road (PC 2018-
2050). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Amended Final Development Plan request by Source 
Point for a parking lot expansion on approximately 11.41 acres zoned PO/I 
(Planned Office/Institutional District) and located at 800 Cheshire Road is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

1. The proposed parking lot expansion shall achieve compliance with all 
engineering requirements. Any engineering drawings shall be included with 
the building permit application for review and approved by the City 
Engineer. 

2. The removed trees along Glenn Parkway shall be replaced. 
3. The applicant shall plant 12 evergreen trees a minimum 6 foot high at 

installation adjacent to the 13 parking spaces along the western property 
line to buffer the single family homes to the west. 

4. The landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

5. The applicant shall grant a right of entry easement along the western 
portion of the site along Cheshire Road for the City to extend the existing 
bike path to the west in the future.  
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 



 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 21    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-84    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       September 24, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MYSTIC GOLF AND GAMES LLC FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR MYSTIC GOLF AND GAMES AT 
1159 COLUMBUS PIKE WITHIN THE DELAWARE SQUARE SHOPPING 
CENTER AND ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on September 5, 2018 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
 
 
 
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-84 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MYSTIC GOLF AND GAMES LLC 
FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
REQUEST FOR MYSTIC GOLF AND GAMES AT 1159 
COLUMBUS PIKE WITHIN THE DELAWARE SQUARE 
SHOPPING CENTER AND ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT)  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of September 5, 
2018 recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit request for Mystic 
Golf and Games at 1159 Columbus Pike within the Delaware Square Shopping 
Center and zoned B-3 (Community Business District) (PC Case 2018-1988). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Conditional Use Permit request for Mystic Golf and 
Games at 1159 Columbus Pike within the Delaware Square Shopping Center 
and zoned B-3 (Community Business District), is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted with the following conditions that: 

1. This approval shall not constitute approval by the State of Ohio to 
occupy the space for the consumption / sale of alcoholic beverages.  
Such approval shall be obtained from the State, if desired. 

2. Any signage shall achieve compliance with the zoning code. 

3. Any lighting shall achieve compliance with the zoning code and shall be 
approved by the Chief Building Official. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  22    DATE: 09/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-85    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MANAGEMENT, PROFESSIONAL, 
TECHNICAL, CONFIDENTIAL, AND SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES PAY PLAN. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City has been unable to fill a vacant building inspector position because 
the current pay rate lags behind the regional market rate. The changes 
recommended place the building inspector position in line with the market 
which will enable the City to fill the vacant position. 
 
The proposed change to the Management Pay Plan, Section I, Wages and Pay 
Plan includes the separation of the job title Building & Code Enforcement 
Officer I and II because these are two separate positions with different job 
responsibilities and qualification – a Code Enforcement Officer and a Building 
Inspector. The Code Enforcement Officer I and II in grades M7 and M8 will stay 
in the same pay grade. The Building Inspector I will move to a grade M9 and 
Building Inspector II to a grade M13, reflecting the market rate for these 
positions. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Council action is required to make changes to the Management Pay Plan.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Raising the grade of the Building Inspector II from a M8 to M13 will result in 
an increase in wages/PERS/Medicare/workers compensation costs of 
approximately $10,000 for 2018 (which will likely require a supplemental to the 
2018 budget) and approximately $40,000 in 2019 depending on the salary 
increase applied to the Management Pay Plan for the 2019 year.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at Second Reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Memorandum 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-85 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MANAGEMENT, 
PROFESSIONAL, TECHNICAL, CONFIDENTIAL, AND 
SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES PAY PLAN.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City has been unable to fill a vacant building inspector 
position because the current pay rate lags behind the regional market rate; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the changes recommended below place the building inspector 
position in line with the market which will enable the City to fill the vacant 
position. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the Management, Professional, Technical, Confidential 
and Supervisory Pay Plan shall be amended to reflect the following changes: 

 
SECTION I 

WAGES AND PAY PLAN 
 
 
A.  Non-Union Employee Pay Plan 
 
    PAY GRADE                  POSITION 

M7 Building & Code Enforcement Officer I, Customer Service 
Liaison, Facility Maintenance Supervisor 

M8 Engineering Technician, Airport Operations Supervisor, 
Division Supervisor, Financial Specialist II, Executive 
Assistant, Building & Code Enforcement Officer II, Golf 
Course Superintendent, Project Manager I, Collections 
Manager, Construction Inspector 

M9 Assistant City Attorney/Prosecutor, BUILDING 
INSPECTOR I  

M13 BUILDING INSPECTOR II  
 
 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 



 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
TO:   R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
FROM:   David Efland, AICP  Director of Planning & Community Development 

Lorrie Diaz, Human Resource Coordinator 
DATE:    09/4/2018 
RE:  Building Inspector I & II positions  
 

The Planning and Community Development Department recently had a retirement of one its long-term 
Building Inspectors.  Paul Standering, who had been with the City for 17 years, retired on August 31.  The two 
remaining building inspectors have 13 and 3 years of experience with the City and both are age 70, and the 
building official has 27 years of experience at age 58. Thus they are all or will be eligible to retire within the 
next few years. 

Compensation has been a significant issue in recruiting for building inspector professionals across Ohio for 
several years.  We are extremely fortunate that our employees have been with us for many years and that 
they do an outstanding job.  The community has benefited from their lack of job movement to other 
communities in that we have essentially been able to maintain an experienced, hardworking, and dedicated 
staff within this division without having to keep up with the general marketplace in terms of salary.  The 
current status of the field of inspectors/officials is that 1) there are very few young people entering the field, 
2) up to 80% of the current long-term workforce has or will retire in the next five years, and 3) the 
experience requirements and certifications from the State of Ohio have continued to increase over the years.  
These are highly technical professions, which also require a high degree of interpersonal skills to be most 
effective.  Our community has come to expect the highest level of experience, professionalism, and service 
from this division in particular due to the quality and experience our staff brings.   

We recently collected compensation rates and posted a building inspector position to evaluate the quality and 
price point in the market today.  Compensation in the local communities from which we recruit is currently 
$25-45/hour, with Delaware paying $24.92-29.35/hour.  Our job posting and advertising solicited six 
candidates (compared to our normal 50-100 candidates for most other positions), only three of whom had 
the required certifications to perform the job.  All three of these candidates required a minimum starting rate 
of $34-35/hour. 

We are evaluating how best to effectively and efficiently ensure our applicants can be placed within our pay 
structure in meeting their salary demands, how we can ensure equity among the other two internal building 
inspectors, and how we can be both flexible and long range in our thinking in regard to the inevitable 
succession of personnel within this division.  The reasons for this evaluation are two-fold.  First, we have an 
immediate need to refill a critical inspector position to ensure our level of service is maintained at a rate 
commensurate with the marketplace.  Second, this is the beginning of what is anticipated to be a longer term 
issue concerning succession and retirement within this division.  

Currently, a Building Inspector II is a M8 in the Management Pay Plan (and the title and job description are 
combined with the very different job title of Code Enforcement Officer).  The range for this pay grade is well 
below what other organizations are paying in the market and below what our applicants are requiring. Our 
employees currently occupying those positions are step 5 at $29.35/hour.  We recommend reclassifying this 



 
 

 

position to M13 with a range of $30.35 - $35.73/hour in order to be competitive with the market and offer a 
current candidate for the open position a fair market starting rate.  After receiving only three applications, 
conducting interviews with all qualifying candidates, and querying staff about chemistry and fit, we have 
identified a final candidate of choice.  That candidate has verbally acknowledged that he is unable to make a 
transition in employment for the current maximum hourly rate at the M8 level and is still taking a reduction 
in pay to come in at the M13 level, but willing to accept this smaller decrease in pay.  Thus, the hiring is 
contingent upon the changes proposed herein. 

We further recommend that the current incumbents be reclassified to the new pay grade so that all 
individuals in this role are compensated at the same level.  We believe this is the most fair and equitable 
decision in order to recognize the value of this position and of those individuals currently doing this job.  This 
will cost approximately $10,000 in 2018 to make the adjustment for all three individuals and approximately 
$40,000 in 2019. 

We welcome your direction in this regard and stand ready to help in any way necessary to ensure that we 
think in a way that addresses our short term immediate needs as well as produces opportunities for longer 
term transitions that we know will inevitably come in this division.  Not filling the position effectively means 
that we will have to transition away (quickly) from being a certified building department given workload, 
requirements from the State of Ohio for such, and level of service required by our community to date.  As we 
have a very effective team currently, providing a high level of service, and are in good standing with the State 
of Ohio to continue being a certified Department upon filling the position, webelieve it is imperative that we 
find a reasonable way to do so as quickly as possible. 

 



City Manager Report 20180910 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE:  September 6, 2018 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
 August 22 
 * AEP Meeting 
 August 23  
 * Habitat for Humanity Ground Breaking 
 August 29 
 * OCMA Meeting 
 August 31 
 * 911 Board Meeting 
   
  
  



September 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
      1 

       

2 3 4                                        5 6 7 8 

 Labor Day 
City Offices Closed 

 Civil Service 3pm 
Planning Commission 
7pm 

CIP Work Session 
6:30 pm 

  

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
 City Council 7pm  BZA 7pm-canceled   Delaware County Fair 

Begins 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
  Parks & Rec – 7 pm-

canceled 
 Jug Day 

City Offices Closed  
Noon 

 Delaware County Fair 
Ends 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
 Council 7pm  HPC 7pm    

30       
 October 1st 

CIP Work Session 
6:00 p.m. ? 

     

 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – September 10, 2018 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2018 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
AEP Ohio Meter Change Request $195 CMO 
 


	01 20180910 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20180827 council minutes
	03 20180626 shade tree minutes
	04 20180801 planning minutes
	05 20180606 civil service minutes
	06 fact sheet res 18-51, accept amount rate budget
	07 res 18-51,  accept amounts rate budget commission
	08 2019 certified real taxes
	09 Fact Sheet Res 18-52, County Agmt 23 & Glenn Pkwy
	10 Res 18-52, 23 & GP County Agmt
	11 fact sheet ORD 18-77, Terra Alta NCA
	12 ord 18-77 Sufficiency of Petition and Scheduling Hearing (Terra Alta CA)
	13 20180906  Terra Alta NCA
	14 Terra Alta Petition - Packet
	15 fact sheet ord 18- 70, rezone Seatttle House Apts
	16 ord 18-70 , rezone Seattle House
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-70

	17 fact sheet ord 18-71 , CUP Seatttle House Apts
	18 ord 18-71 , CUP Seattle House apt
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-71

	19 fact sheet ord 18-72 , PDP Seatttle House Apts
	20 ord 18-72 , PDP Seattle House apt
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-72

	21 2018-1394-1396 seattle House apartment staff report
	22 fact sheet ord 18- 73, rezone Highpoint Place Apts
	23 ord 18-73, rezone Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-73

	24  fact sheet ord 18-74, CUP Highpoint Place Apts
	25 ord 18-74, CUP Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-74

	26 fact sheet ord 18-75, PDP Highpoint Place Apts
	27  ord 18-75, PDP Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-75

	28 2018-1402-1404 highpoint place apartments staff report
	28 fact sheet res 18-50, 2019 2023 cip
	29 res 18-50, 2019-2023 cip
	30 2019-2023 CIP V4
	20180815175527244
	2019-2023 CIP V3.pdf
	20180815173622056


	31 fact sheet ord 18-80  accept annex boy scouts camp lazarus
	32 ord 18-80 accept annex boy scouts camp lazarus
	33 Boy Scouts of America Granting of Prayer
	34 res 18-36, boy scouts camp lazarus annexation with certification
	35 fact sheet ord 18-81,  pre-treat limits for silver and mercury
	36 ord 18-81, amend codified 917.05 mercury silver
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-81

	37 Non-Substantial Approval Letter - signed
	38 fact sheet ord 18-82, 2018-2255 Willowbrook Retail Phase 2 FSP
	39 ord 18-82 , 2018-2255 Willowbrook Retail Phase 2 FSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-82
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	40 2018-2255 medrock fsdp willowbrook retail
	41 fact sheet ord 18- 83, 2018-2050 Source Point AFDP
	42 ord 18-83 , 2018-2050 Source Point AFDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-83
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	43 2018-2050 sourcepoint afdp
	44 factsheet ord 18 -84 , 2018-1988 Mystic Golf CUP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR MYSTIC GOLF AND GAMES LLC FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR MYSTIC GOLF AND GAMES AT 1159 COLUMBUS PIKE WITHIN THE DELAWARE SQUARE SHOPPING CENTER AND ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT).

	45 ord 18-84,2018-1988 Mystic Golf CUP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR MYSTIC GOLF AND GAMES LLC FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR MYSTIC GOLF AND GAMES AT 1159 COLUMBUS PIKE WITHIN THE DELAWARE SQUARE SHOPPING CENTER AND ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT)

	46 2018-1988 mystic golf cup
	47 fact sheet ord 18-85 mgt pay plan - Building Inspector changes - DRAFT (...
	48 ord 18-85 amend mgt pay plan - DRAFT (2)
	PAY GRADE                  POSITION

	49 2018 Building Inspector Council Recommendation - DRAFT3
	50 city managers report 20180910
	51September Calendar 2018
	52 contract approval 20180910
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – September 10, 2018
	2018
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	$195
	AEP Ohio
	Meter Change Request





